
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULATION COMMITTEE MENTAL HEALTH GUARDIANSHIP SUB-
COMMITTEE 

 

 Wednesday, 30 January 2013 at 2.00 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait 
Wantsum Room, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone:   01622 694342 

   
 

 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 
 

Item 
No 

 

1 Substitutes   

2 Declarations of Interest by Members for items on the agenda   

3 Minutes of the Panel meeting held on 27 January 2012 (for 
Information) (Pages 1 - 2) 

 

4 The Local Authority's Guardianship Register (Pages 3 - 8)  

5 Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent   

 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

*All timings are approximate  

Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership 
(01622) 694002 
 
22 January 2013 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

REGULATION COMMITTEE MENTAL HEALTH GUARDIANSHIP 
PANEL 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Regulation Committee Mental Health Guardianship 
Panel held in the Swale 3, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Friday, 27 
January 2012. 
 
PRESENT: Mr M J Harrison (Chairman), Mr R E Brookbank and Mr C P Smith 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr P Absolon (Social Care Commissioner for Mental Health), 
Ms D Divine (Policy Officer - Mental Health), Ms M Brown (Administration Officer) 
and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
1. Minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2011  
(Item 3) 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2011 were noted, having been 
previously approved at the Regulation Committee meeting on 17 May 2011.  
 
2. Guardianship Register and Guardianship Review Panel  
(Item 4) 
 
(1)  The Social Care Commissioner for Mental Health reported that since the new 
provisions of the Mental Health Act had come into force in 2007, there had been 
regular bi-monthly Guardianship Review Panel meetings to oversee the cases of 
every service user on the Guardianship Register and to consider potential new 
cases.   Only one new application had been made in 2011/12.  
 
(2)  The Policy Officer – Mental Health reported that very good progress was being 
made in partnership with the clinical practitioners to improve the accuracy of the 
Register. 
 
(3)  Work had also been undertaken to develop generic practice guidance and a 
proforma document for recording legal changes.    
 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS  
(Open Access to Minutes)  

(Members resolved under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 that the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds that it 
involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.) 
 
(4)  The Panel Members were shown an electronic version of the Guardianship 
Register and noted that since 1 April 2011, 11 service users had been removed from 
it.  It was anticipated that a further 5 might be removed before the end of March 2012. 
This would leave only 17 names on the Register.  

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

2 

 
(5)  The Panel agreed the recommendations set out in the report and also decided 
that, in order to avoid confusion with the Guardianship Panel, it would change its own 
name to “Regulation Committee Mental Health Guardianship Sub-Committee.”  
 
(6)  RESOLVED that:-  
 

(a)   the report and the contents of the Guardianship Register be noted and 
that endorsement be given to:- 

 
(i) the development of an information leaflet for service users and 

carers detailing the statutory provisions under Section 7 of the 
Mental Health Act 1983 (amended 2007) and the right of appeal 
to a mental Health Tribunal and to Local Social Services 
Authority Members respectively;  

 
(ii) the introduction of an electronic guardianship register held on a 

secure database.  It is envisaged that this will have the capacity 
for digital sign-off by members. The rationale is to improve 
efficiency by reducing the need to hold a paper record. While it is 
unlikely that all paperwork associated with the guardianship 
process can be eliminated, it will be possible to archive closed 
cases, the number of which currently stands at approximately 40;  
and  

  
(iii) the Operational Support Unit following up published policy and 

practice guidance by surveying practitioners at intervals, 
receiving feedback and checking this against compliance rates; 
and  

 
(b)  in order to avoid confusion with the Guardianship Panel, this Panel be 

renamed the Regulation Committee Mental Health Guardianship Sub-
Committee.  

 
 

Page 2



By:   Corporate Director – Families and Social Care  
 
To:    Regulation Committee Mental Health Guardianship Sub-

Committee – 30th January 2013 
 
Subject:  The Local Authority’s Guardianship Register   
 
Classification: Unrestricted  
 

 
Summary:  To note the work of the working party to review Guardianship 

Orders. The list of closed cases since January 2012 and the 
current guardianship register are enclosed for information.    

 

 
1. Introduction 
 
 (1.1) The Kent County Council’s Regulation Committee Mental Health 
Guardianship Sub-Committee has been instituted in recognition of the duty of 
the responsible Social Services Authority to review Guardianship Orders and 
discharge if appropriate, in compliance with amendments to the Mental Health 
Act 1983 that were introduced in 2007. To expedite this, a working party of 
officers has been set up to carry out these duties.  This report is to inform 
Members of the current state of the authority’s Guardianship Register, 
highlighting the review process and outcomes. It also contains the list of 
closed cases at Appendix 1 and the current guardianship register at 
Appendix 2.  
 
2. The Working Party 
 
 (2.1)  The working party is made up of three officers of Kent Adult 
Social Services and two co-opted independent members who have had recent 
operational management experience within mental health. It is supported by a 
part time administrator and has met on six occasions since January 2012 at bi 
monthly intervals.  
 

(2.2) At the beginning of January 2012 there were 22 people subject 
to Guardianship Orders across Kent. One of the tasks of the working party 
has been to investigate whether Orders have lapsed or a person subject to an 
Order has died. This process has been in place since 2009 when there were 
48 people identified as subject to Guardianship. Often practitioners and teams 
have had difficulty in tracing the progress of a Guardianship Order (i.e. where 
an Order had been invoked several years previously and the Approved Social 
Worker had left the team). The working party has been able to rationalise the 
register, having obtained up to date information from community mental health 
team managers, hospital managers and practitioners.  During 2012 11 old 
cases of this kind have been traced and closed. There are 4 cases of this kind 
outstanding and work is underway to locate archived case notes and work 
with the local community teams to close them. This has been a critical feature 
of the work around Guardianship practice as the administrator, who is also the 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



keeper of the register, is obliged to provide the Department of Health with 
precise data on those subject to Guardianship on an annual basis. The last 
submission to the Department of Health was for the period 01/04/11 to 
31/03/12 and reported  2 new cases and the closure of 14 cases.  

 
(2.3) During 2012 there have been 5 new Guardianship applications 

and 4 existing Guardianship orders have been renewed. There are currently 
13 people on the Guardianship register. 

 
(2.4 ) During 2012 the process for members of the working party to 

scrutinise Guardianship  applications and renewals plus accompanying 
papers, has been reviewed and improved. This has included an extension to 
back up arrangements for scrutiny and acceptance of guardianship orders on 
behalf of Kent County Council. 

 
(2.5) The working party continues to use an audit trial once 

Guardianship has been invoked, so that there is a properly and accurately 
maintained record of this particular statutory activity. Through this process we 
have been able to promote best practice amongst professionals, encouraging 
positive decision-making where a subject of Guardianship no longer requires 
the framework that this Order provides (rather than simply allowing the Order 
to lapse).   

 
(2.6) The working party has supported practitioners and teams by 

devising a proforma with which to report the current status of a Guardianship 
Order. Practitioners responsible for invoking and/or renewing Guardianship 
Orders are invited to attend review meetings to participate in the review 
process on an individual case basis.  An up to date social circumstances 
report is requested in advance so that the working party is able to consider all 
relevant information, including any recent developments. 

 
(2.7) During 2012 a request was received from a court for an 

assessment for Guardianship to be undertaken in relation to someone who 
had been brought before them. Subsequently the working group has 
produced a clear referral pathway for  the courts. 

 
           (2.8) In order to ensure that service users who are received into 
Guardianship by Kent County Council and their families and/or carers fully 
understand their rights to appeal, an information leaflet has been devised, 
based on a Department of Health exemplar. This contains information 
regarding the process for appeal, the right to complain and the right to have 
access to statutory advocacy. 
 
 
          (2.9) Under section 29 of the Mental Health Act 1983 (amended 2007) a 
person’s nearest relative may be displaced and their powers under the Mental 
Health Act removed. In cases such as this , or where an person does not 
have a nearest relative ( within the terms of the Mental Health Act) , section 
29 further provides for a local authority to assume the role of the nearest 
relative. Guidance is currently being developed to assist  practitioners in 

Page 4



carrying out the  requirements of  section 29. These will be available within 
the next two months.                                                                                                                       

 
 
 
 
(2.10) Under section 66 of the Mental Health Act 1983 (amended 

2007) a person who is subject to Guardianship may apply to the Mental 
Health Review Tribunal. Under section 72 of the Mental Health Act 1993 
(amended 2007) the Mental Health Review Tribunal may discharge a person 
from Guardianship if they are not satisfied that the legal requirements and 
original grounds for reception into guardianship continue to apply.  During 
2012 the working party has been aware of  requests by solicitors for copies of 
Guardianship Orders in order to consider applications to the Mental Health 
Review Tribunal in relation to 2 people. The working group is also aware that 
an application was made in relation to one of these people. The working 
group intends to introduce a more robust process to monitor the number and 
outcome of applications to the Mental Health Review Tribunal. 

 
 
(2.11)  There has been no need for Members to be asked to adjudicate 

a disputed case, nor indeed have they been asked to discharge an Order in 
accordance with their powers under Section 23(4) of the MHA 1983 (amended 
2007).  

 
3. Summary 
 
 (3.1)  In summary the existing arrangements for overseeing 
Guardianship Orders provides a mechanism for reinforcing legally compliant 
interventions and upholding the principles of best practice arrangements. 
They provide for an accurate record of those currently subject to Section 7 of 
the Mental Health Act 1983 (amended 2007) within the responsibility of Kent 
County Council. Robust processes are in place for the review and quality 
assurance of Guardianship Orders, including renewals, which give 
consideration to the least restrictive options available, with the authority to 
make appropriate recommendations for discharge. These processes and 
relevant guidance have been reviewed and developed to improve clarity and 
understanding. It is anticipated that over the next year processes will continue 
to be further improved. 
 
 

4. Recommendation 
 
 (4.1) The Sub-Committee is invited to note the content of this report together 
with the lists of closed cases since January 2012 (Appendix 1) and the current 
guardianship register (Appendix 2).  
 

 
Cheryl Fenton 
Head of Mental Health Social Work 

Page 5



Tel No: 0300 333 5591 
E-mail:  cheryl.fenton@kent.gov.uk 
Background Documents:  Mental Health Act 1983 and Amendments 2007. 
 

Page 6



GUARDIANSHIP RESTER

(CURRENT)

JANUARY 2013
Review Panel 

mtg date Initials DoH No

Mental 

Health Team Sex DoB Origin Disorder Category MHA, 1983 Section Relationship to Guardian Date Guardianship Commenced Last Renewal date

1

14.03.12 (apr) 

next in 13th 

March 2013 for 

8th renewal NM 111

Dover/Deal 

CMHT M 14/03/72 SS1 Mental Impairment 7 LA 29/07/05 26/04/12

2

14.11.12 (nov) 

next in 13th 

November 2013 

for 6th renewal EN 121

Tunbridge 

Wells CMHT F 16/06/61 White British Mental Illness 7 LA 12/11/08 09/11/12

3

18.01.12 (jan) 

next in 23rd 

January 2013 for 

5th renewal KJ 127

Swale Mental 

Health Team M 12/08/86

Afro-

Caribean Severe Mental Impairment 7 LA 19/05/09 22/01/13

4

16.05.12 (may) 

next in 15th May 

2013 for 5th 

renewal SG 137

Shepway 

CMHT F 12/07/44 White British Mental Disorder 7 LA 27/11/09 11/05/12

5

18.07.12 (aug), 

04.10.12   next in 

March 2013 AB 139

Mental Health 

Services for 

Older People 

Maidstone M 08/09/51 White British Mental Disorder 7 LA 16/03/12 14/09/12

6

19.09.12 (sept) 

next in 13th 

March 2013 for 

1st renewal JB 141

Tunbridge 

Wells CMHT F 01/11/50 White British Mental Disorder 7 LA 10/09/12

7

19.09.12 (sept) 

next in 13th 

March 2013 for 

1st renewal DI 142

Dartford, 

Gravesend, 

Swale MHT F 15/08/67 White British Mental Disorder 7 LA 28/09/12

8

1st renewal due 

April 2013, so 

next in March 

2013 SA 143

Swale Mental 

Health Team M 01/12/83 Not specified Mental Impairment 7 LA 19/10/12

9

1st renewal due 

May 2013, so 

next in May 2013 JC 144

Maidstone 

Team M 07/02/78 White British Mental Disorder 7 LA 05/11/12

05/02/13 1

P
a
g

e
 7



P
a
g
e
 8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Panel meeting held on 27 January 2012 (for Information)
	4 The Local Authority's Guardianship Register
	Item 04 Appendices


